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Assart Originally a French word meaning 
to ‘clear and enclose land’ from 
waste or woodland.  The resulting 
fields are termed assart fields. 

Bloomery A furnace and forge in which 
wrought iron in the form of 
blooms is made from iron ore, or 
(less frequently) from cast iron.

Boling The thickened stump of a 
pollarded tree.

Coppice Trees cut on regular cycles in order 
to harvest multi-stems.

Coupes Areas of a coppice which are cut 
in rotation of 7 to 15 year cycles 
depending on the species and the 
type of poles required.

Gill A sinuous narrow wooded valley, 
characteristic of the High Weald.  
These woods are often ancient in 
origin and may contain evidence of 
former iron workings.

Hundred A division of the shire, which 
probably originated in the 10th 
century, consisting of hundred 
families, 100 hides of land or 
ten tithings.  A Court was held 
presided over by a hundred reeve 
acting on behalf of the king.

Lynchet A step-like boundary earthwork 
formed by downslope accumulation 
of soil under cultivation, collecting 
against a hedge, stones, fence.

Manor Land held by a lord, tenure of 
which was held by various rights 
and customs, and administered by 
a manorial court.

Pollards Trees cut at a height of 3m or 10ft 
above ground level in order to 
harvest the timber.  Used especially 
where stock are grazing in wood-
pasture systems.

Rew Can be a hedgerow, row of trees or 
a shaw 1.

Shaw A small wood, coppice or spinney, 
but is more commonly used to 
mean a narrow strip of woodland 
growing alongside the edge the 
margins of a field 2.

Shave Is a small wood or copse and is 
similar to that of a shaw, although 
the name is sometimes used in 
reference to a hedgerow 3.

Standards Trees allowed grow to maturity 
with single stem in order to 
produce long, straight timber.

Stratigraphy The horizontal layers of 
accumulated soils and buried 
human artifacts.  The presumption 
being that oldest deposits are the 
lowest (deepest) in the profile.

Stubs Trees cut at a height of about 1 
metre or 3 feet to produce multi-
stems.  Used as a way of marking 
boundaries and coppice coupes.

Timber Wood produced from mature or 
standard trees.

Underwood Wood produced from coppice.

Wood-pasture An open woodland, or wooded  
 pasture where stock were allowed  
 to graze beneath trees managed  
 for their timber.  An ancient form  
 of woodland management rarely  
 practised now.

Footnotes
1 James, N. D. G. (1991) Forestry and Woodland Terms.  Blackwell
2 ibid
3 ibid

Glossary of terms 
used in the text
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AONBs

High Weald AONB 
Woodland Enterprise Centre, Hastings Road,
Flimwell, East Sussex TN5 7PR
Tel: 01580 879500
www.highweald.org
email: info@highweald.org

Kent Downs AONB
West Barn, Penstock Hall Farm, Canterbury Road,
East Brabourne, Ashford, Kent TN25 5LL
Tel: 01303 815170
www.kentdowns.org.uk
email: mail@kentdowns.org.uk

Surrey Hills AONB
Warren Farm Barns, Headley Lane,
Mickleham, Dorking, Surrey RH5 6DG
Tel: 01372 220653 
www.surreyhills.org
email: surreyhills@surreycc.gov.uk 

Archaeological Societies

Kent Archaeological Society  
The Museum, St Faith’s Street, Maidstone,
Kent ME14 1LH
www.kentarchaeology.org.uk

Surrey Archaeological Society
Castle Arch, Guildford, Surrey GU1 3SX
Tel: 01483 532454
www.surreyarchaeology.org.uk
email: surreyarch@compuserve.com 

Sussex Archaeological Society
Bull House, 92 High Street, Lewes,
East Sussex BN7 1XH
Tel: 01273 486260
www.sussexpast.co.uk
email: ceo@sussexpast.co.uk

Archaeological Trusts

Independent Local Archaeological Trusts and Units
with specialist knowledge of archaeology in the South 
East (registered with the Institute of Field Archaeologists,  
IFA)

Canterbury Archaeological Trust Ltd
92a Broad Street, Canterbury, Kent CT1 2LU
Tel: 01227 462062
www.canterburytrust.co.uk
email: admin@canterburytrust.co.uk

Surrey County Archaeological Unit
Surrey History Centre, 130 Goldsworth Road, 
Woking, Surrey GU21 6ND
Tel: 01483 518777
www.surreycc.gov.uk/archaeology
e:mail archaeology.scau@surreycc.gov.uk

Archaeology South-East (a division of University 
College London Field Archaeology Unit)
1 West Street, Ditchling, Hassocks,
West Sussex BN6 8TS 
Tel: 01273 845497
www.archaeologyse.co.uk
email: d.perring@ucl.ac.uk 

Names of other specialists in woodland archaeology 
can be obtained from the Forestry Commission

Archives and Local Study Centres

Access to Archives
www.a2a.org.uk

Canterbury Cathedral Archives
The Precincts, Canterbury, Kent CT1 2EH 
Tel: 01227 865330
www.canterbury-cathedral.org
email: archives@canterbury-cathedral.org 

Centre for Kentish Studies
Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone,
Kent ME14 1XQ 
Tel: 01622 694363 
www.kent.gov.uk/archives
email: archives@kent.gov.uk

East Kent Archives Centre
Enterprise Zone,  Honeywood Road, Whitfield, 
Dover, Kent CT16 3EH
Tel: 01304 829306
www.kent.gov.uk/e&l/artslib/archives
email: eastkentarchives@kent.gov.uk 

Useful Contacts
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Medway Archives and Local Studies Centre
Civic Centre, Strood, Medway Kent ME2 4AU 
Tel: 01634 332714 
www.medway.gov.uk
email: local.studies@medway.gov.uk

The National Archives (formerly the Public Records
Office)
Kew, Richmond, Surrey TW9 4DU 
Tel: 020 8392 5200
www.nationalarchives.gov.uk
email: enquiry@nationalarchives.gov.uk

Surrey History Centre
Tel: 130 Goldsworth Road, Woking, Surrey GU21 1ND 
01483 518737
www.surreycc.gov.uk
email: shs@surreycc.gov.uk

County Archaeologists

Casper Johnson
County Archaeologist
Transport and Environment Department
East Sussex County Council, County Hall, St Anne’s 
Crescent, Lewes, East Sussex BN7 1UE
Tel: 01273 481608
email: casper.johnson@eastsussex.gov.uk

Dr John Williams
Principal Archaeologist
Heritage and Conservation Department
Environment & Waste, Kent County Council
Invicta House, Maidstone, Kent ME14 1XX
Tel: 01622 221535
email: john.williams@kent.gov.uk

Surrey County Archaeological Unit
Surrey History Centre
130 Goldsworth Road, Woking, Surrey GU21 6ND
Tel: 01483 518777
email: archaeology.scau@surreycc.gov.uk

Mark Taylor
Senior Archaeologist
Historic Environment Department
Environment Group, West Sussex County Council
Third Floor, The Grange, Tower Street, Chichester,
West Sussex PO19 1RH
Tel: 01243 382018
email: mark.taylor@westsussex.gov.uk

County Records Offices

East Sussex Records Office
The Maltings, Castle Precincts, Lewes,
East Sussex BN7 1YT 
Tel: 01273 482349
www.eastsussexcc.gov.uk
email: archives@eastsussex.gov.uk

West Sussex Records Office
Sherburne House, 3 Orchard Street, Chichester. 
Postal enquiries to County Hall, Chichester,
West Sussex PO19 1RN
Tel: 01243 753600
www.westsussex.gov.uk
email: records.office@westsussex.gov.uk 

Non-government Conservation Organisations

The National Trust
Central Office, Heelis, Kemble Drive, Swindon,
Wiltshire SN2 2NA
Tel: 0870 609 5383
www.nationaltrust.org.uk

The Woodland Trust
Autumn Park, Dysart Road, Grantham,
Lincolnshire NG31 6LL
www.woodland_trust.org.uk

Research Groups

Kent Underground Research Group
www.KURG.org.uk 

Wealden Iron Research Group
www.wealdeniron.org.uk

Sites and Monuments Record (SMR)

East Sussex SMR
East Sussex Historical Environment Record 
Archaeology Section, Transport & Environment, 
East Sussex County Council, St Anne’s Crescent, 
Lewes, East Sussex BN7 1UE 
Tel: 01273 481608 
email: gregory.chuter@eastsussex.gov.uk
casper.johnson@eastsussex.gov.uk

Kent SMR
The Sites and Monuments Record Officer, 
Heritage Conservation Group, Invicta House, 
County Hall, Maidstone, Kent ME14 1XX 
Tel: 01622 221541 
www.kent.gov.uk
email: heritageconservation@kent.gov.uk
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Surrey SMR
Surrey County Council, County Hall,
Kingston-Upon-Thames, Surrey KT1 2DY
Tel: 020 8541 9083
email: smr@surreycc.gov.uk

West Sussex SMR
West Sussex County Council
Environmental and Economic Policy Service,
The Grange, Tower Street, Chichester,
West Sussex PO19 1RH
01243 756858
email: keith.watson@westsussex.gov.uk 

The National Monuments Record (NMR)
NMR Enquiry & Research Services,
National Monuments Record, English Heritage,
Kemble Drive, Swindon, Wiltshire SN2 2GZ
Tel: 01793 414600
www.english-heritage.org.uk
email: nmrinfo@english-heritage.org.uk

Government Departments and Agencies

English Heritage (South East region)
Eastgate Court, 195-205 High Street, Guildford,
Surrey GU1 3EH
Tel: 01483 252000
email: southeast@english-heritage.org.uk

Forestry Commission
South East Conservancy and area office for
Hampshire, Isle of Wight, West Sussex and Surrey
Forestry Commission, Alice Holt, Wrecclesham,
Farnham, Surrey GU10 4LF
Tel: 01420 23337
www.forestry.org.uk
email: southeast.fce@forestry.gsi.gov.uk

Forestry Commission
Kent and East Sussex Area Office, Park Lane, 
Goudhurst, Cranbrook, Kent TN17 2SL
Tel: 01580 211123
email: southeast.fce@forestry.gsi.gov.uk 

Forestry Commission England
Great Eastern House, Tenison Road,
Cambridge CB1 2DU
Tel: 01223 314546
www.forestry.gov.uk/ewgs
email: nationaloffice.fce@forestry.gsi.gov.uk

Natural England
Eastern Area Team (covering, Kent, Surrey, and Sussex)
Lewes office:
Natural England, Phoenix House, 33 North Street, 
Lewes, East Sussex BN7 2PH
Tel: 01273 476595
www.naturalengland.org.uk
e-mail: sussex.surrey@naturalengland.org.uk

Other Relevant Organisations

British Horse Loggers 
National Industry body representing horse logging 
contractors in the UK
www.britishhorseloggers.org.uk

National Hedgelaying Association
Allan Portas, The Secretary, 88 Manor Road, 
Toddington, Bedfordshire LU5 6AJ
www.hedgelaying.org.uk
email: allan.portas@farmersweekly.net

Portable Antiquities Scheme
British Museum, London WC1B 3DG
Tel: 020 7323 8611
www.finds.org.uk for local officers and contacts

Royal Forestry Society
Main Office: 102 High Street, Tring, Hertfordshire 
HP23 4AF
Tel: 01442 822028
www.rfs.org.uk
email: rfshq@rfs.org.uk

Small Woodlands Association
The Old Bakery, Pontesbury, Shropshire SY5 0RR
Tel: 01743 792644
www.smallwoods.org.uk




